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August 8, 2012 
 
 
 
 
 
Frank Dean, General Superintendent 
National Park Service 
Golden Nate National Recreation Area 
ATTN:  Steve Ortega 
Fort Mason, #201 
San Francisco, CA 94123 
 
 
 
Re:      ND-030-12, Negative Determination, National Park Service (NPS)/Golden Gate National 
 Recreation Area (GGNRA), Sand Management Project – Sand Relocation from north to 
 south Ocean Beach, City and  County of San Francisco 
 
 
 
Dear Mr. Dean: 
 
The Coastal Commission staff has reviewed the above-referenced NPS negative determination 
for the relocation of 100,000-150,000 cu. yds. of sand from the north end of Ocean Beach to the 
south end.  Excess sand exists in northern Ocean Beach, where sand levels are at historic highs 
and have reached the top of the O’Shaughnessy seawall, and severe erosion has been continuing 
over a number of years at the south end (south of Sloat Blvd.), threatening the Great Highway 
and sewage treatment facility infrastructure.   The NPS proposes to load the sand onto 
approximately 30-cu.-yd.-capacity trucks, and deposit the sand on the beach south of Sloat Blvd.  
The intent is to provide temporary protection for infrastructure pending completion and 
implementation of the long term master plan for Ocean Beach.  The NPS is working 
cooperatively with the City; the NPS owns the beach, the SF Public Utilities Commission 
operates the wastewater treatment facilities, and the SF Dept. of Public Works maintains the 
Great Highway. 
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The excavation area is 4200 ft. long and 150-200 ft. wide (and up to 13 ft. deep).  Trucks would 
enter the excavation area off Lincoln Way.  The sand would be dumped south of Sloat and 
spread by dozers and loaders.  Prior to any sand placement, receiver areas would be cleared of 
hazards, rubble, rebar, creosote wood, and asphalt. Southbound lanes on the Great Highway  
would be closed during construction periods, which would occur between 7:00 am and 8:00 pm; 
no night or weekend work would occur.  A City-approved traffic management plan would be 
implemented.  Project duration is approximately 5 weeks. 
 
The NPS initially submitted this matter as a consistency determination; however it was submitted 
too late to be scheduled for the August 2012 Commission meeting.  The NPS hoped to be able to 
commence the activity in August, due to habitat restrictions and other logistical limitations.  The 
NPS states it needs to stop working in September.  The Commission staff therefore agreed to 
bring this matter to the Commission’s attention, with this draft concurrence letter, at the August 
Commission meeting (during the Deputy Director’s report on Friday, August 10, 2012) ,which 
appears to be the only Commission review procedure available that would allow the sand to be 
relocated this year. 
  
After several discussions between the Commission staff, the NPS, and the City, the NPS has 
agreed to modify the proposal as follows: 
 

Project Changes:  Based on discussions with the Commission and suggestions from the 
interested community, the following elements have been added to the project:  1) Remove 
existing monitoring poles and other safety hazards on the beach and bluffs, relocate 
rubble and rock washed out on beach back to eroded slope for bluff protection, and cut 
steel rebar protruding from rubble; 2) Separation of hazardous materials from excavated 
and relocated sand and disposal in a licensed landfill; 3) Develop a monitoring plan. 
 

The federal consistency staff has historically used the administrative review process to encourage 
beach replenishment, albeit most often in the context of encouraging dredgers to place suitable 
sandy materials on the beach or in nearshore areas.  In this case it is the timing limitations that 
led staff to consider an administrative authorization, combined with the fact that at the north end 
of the beach sand levels have reached the top of the O’Shaughnessy seawall. 
 
The Commission staff agrees that the proposed activity will temporarily benefit public access 
and recreation, and not adversely affect coastal zone resources.  This concurrence should not be 
interpreted to condone unauthorized City-placed structures on the beach, and the Commission 
urges, in no uncertain terms, all parties to work together to implement interim and long range 
plans to remove unauthorized structures and provide managed retreat solutions.  With this 
understanding, we concur with your negative determination made pursuant to 15 CFR 930.35 of 
the NOAA implementing regulations.  Please contact Mark Delaplaine at (415) 904-5289 if you 
have any questions regarding this matter. 
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       Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
       CHARLES LESTER 
       Executive Director 
 
 
cc: CCC – North Central Coast District   
 City of SF (DPW, PUC) 
 Corps of Engineers, SF District (both Regulatory and Planning Divisions) 
 SPUR 
















